

## **U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Health Resources and Services Administration**

## **REPORT TO CONGRESS**

## NURSE CORPS LOAN REPAYMENT AND SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS FISCAL YEAR 2019

## **Executive Summary**

The Nurse Corps Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs Report to Congress for Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 is in response to section 846(h) of the Public Health Service Act, which states, in part:

Not later than 18 months after the date of enactment of the Nurse Reinvestment Act, and annually thereafter, the Secretary shall prepare and submit to the Congress a report describing the programs carried out under this section.

The goal of many Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) programs is to support the delivery of health care in areas of greatest need. HRSA administers the Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program (LRP) and Scholarship Program (SP) to improve the distribution of nursing graduates and professionals. The Nurse Corps LRP and SP support nursing education and training by providing recruitment and retention incentives to nurses committed to a career in underserved communities. These incentives include either a loan repayment or a scholarship award in exchange for service in a health care facility with a critical shortage of nurses (Critical Shortage Facility or CSF) that is located in a Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA). The Nurse Corps LRP also extends loan repayments to nurse faculty serving in accredited schools of nursing.

In FY 2019, the Nurse Corps received \$86.7 million from annual appropriations. The Nurse Corps LRP received 4,894 new and continuation applications and the SP received 2,170 new and continuation applications. HRSA made a total of 1,079 new and continuation Nurse Corps awards (853 LRP, including 142 Nurse Faculty LRP, and 226 SP) to nurses and nursing students across a total of 48 states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico. Of the 853 new and continuing Nurse Corps LRP awards, 711 were made to participants serving at CSFs—98 percent at CSFs in high-need HPSAs (high-need HPSAs are defined as areas with a score of 14 or higher). The average HPSA score for the FY 2019 CSF placements was approximately 17. HRSA made 142 Nurse Corps LRP awards to nurse faculty participants—18 percent serving at schools of nursing with at least a 50 percent enrollment of students from disadvantaged backgrounds. Nearly 68 percent of SP awards were awarded to bachelor's degree students, 27 percent to master's degree students, 5 percent to associate's degree students, and 0 nursing diploma students.

As of September 30, 2019, the Nurse Corps field strength included 1,928 registered nurses (RNs) and nurse faculty members fulfilling multi-year service commitments. Further, 84 percent of Nurse Corps alumni remained at a CSF for up to 2 years beyond the completion of their Nurse Corps service commitment.



## Nurse Corps Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs Report to Congress for Fiscal Year 2019

## **Table of Contents**

Execu	tive Summary2
Table	of Contents
List of	Tables4
Acron	ym List4
I.	Statutory Language
II.	Introduction5
III.	Overview
IV.	Report Requirements7
	Requirement #1: The Number of Enrollees, Scholarships, Loan Repayments, and Grant Recipients
	Requirement #2: The Number of Graduates
	Requirement #3: The Amount of Scholarship Payments and Loan Repayments Made9
	Requirement #4: The Educational Institutions Attended by Recipients
	Requirement #5: The Number and Placement Location of the Scholarship and Loan Repayment Recipients at Healthcare Facilities with a Critical Shortage of Nurses
	Requirement #6: Default Rate and Actions Required10
	Requirement #7: Amount of Outstanding Default Funds of Both the Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs
	Requirement #8: The Reasons for the Default
	Requirement #9: The Demographics of the Individuals Participating in the Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs
	Requirement #10: Justification for the Allocation of Funds between the Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs
	Requirement #11: An Evaluation of the Overall Costs and Benefits of the Programs15
V.	Conclusion15
Appen	ndix A – Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Graduates by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)17

Appendix B – Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Participants by State and Scho 2019)	•
Appendix C – Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Participants by State and Shortage Facility (FY 2019)	d Critical
Appendix D – Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Nurse Faculty: New Par by State and School (FY 2019)	rticipants

## List of Tables

Table 1: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Awards (FY 2019)	8
Table 2: Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Awards (FY 2019)	8
Table 3: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program and Scholarship Program Award Amounts (F	Y
2019)	9
Table 4: Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Default Rates (FY 2009-FY 2019)	11
Table 5: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Default Rates (FY 2013-FY 2019)	11
Table 6: Nurse Corps Scholarship Program - Reasons for the Default	12
Table 7: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program - Reasons for the Default	13
(FY 2013-FY 2019)	13

## Acronym List

APRN	Advanced Practice Registered Nurse
CRNA	Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists
CSF	Critical Shortage Facility
EFC	Expected Family Contribution
FY	Fiscal Year
HPSA	Health Professional Shortage Area
HRSA	Health Resources and Services Administration
LRP	Loan Repayment Program
NP	Nurse Practitioner
PHS	Public Health Service
RN	Registered Nurse
SP	Scholarship Program

## I. Statutory Language

Section 846(h) of the Public Health Service Act (PHS) requires that the Secretary provide a report to Congress. The PHS Act states, in part:

Not later than 18 months after the date of enactment of the Nurse Reinvestment Act, and annually thereafter, the Secretary shall prepare and submit to the Congress a report describing the programs carried out under this section.

## II. Introduction

The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) administers the Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program (LRP) and Scholarship Program (SP) to improve the distribution of nursing graduates and professionals.

The Nurse Corps LRP is a financial incentive program in which registered nurses (RN) and advanced practice registered nurses (APRN), such as nurse practitioners (NP), enter into a contract with the federal government to work full-time in a Critical Shortage Facility (CSF) with a critical shortage of nurses.<sup>1</sup> The LRP repays 60 percent of the outstanding principal and interest on the nursing education loans for participants with the greatest financial need in exchange for a 2-year service commitment. Participants may be eligible for an additional 25 percent repayment in exchange for an optional third year of full-time service.

The Nurse Corps LRP also makes awards to nurses to serve as faculty at accredited schools of nursing with a preference given where at least 50 percent of the students are from a disadvantaged background. The awards aid in the recruitment and retention of nurse faculty by decreasing economic barriers associated with pursuing a career in academia. Nurse faculty receive the same loan repayment benefits as program participants serving at a CSF. To become nurse faculty an RN must continue training and assume additional financial and time commitments that many working nurses cannot afford.<sup>2</sup> The average ages of doctoral- and master's degree-prepared nurse faculty are 56.8 years and 55 years, respectively.<sup>3</sup> The shortage of nurse faculty will become more pronounced as current nurse faculty retire.<sup>4</sup>

The Nurse Corps SP pays tuition, fees, and other reasonable costs and pays a monthly stipend to individuals attending accredited schools of nursing in exchange for a service commitment of at least 2 years in a CSF after graduation. The Nurse Corps SP reduces financial barriers to nursing

<sup>2</sup> American Association of Colleges of Nursing (2014). Nursing faculty shortage fact sheet. Updated April 26, 2017 from http://www.aacnnursing.org/portals/42/news/factsheets/faculty-shortage-factsheet-2017.pdf

<sup>3</sup> American Association of Colleges of Nursing (2014). 2013-2014 salaries of instructional and administrative nursing faculty in baccalaureate and graduate programs in nursing. Washington, D.C.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Nurse Corps defines CSFs as approved health care facilities located in, designated as, or serving a Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) with shortages of primary care or mental health professionals. HRSA designates HPSAs pursuant to Section 332 of the PHS Act and implementing regulations as geographic areas, population groups, or medical facilities having shortages of primary care, dental, or mental health providers.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Ibid.

education for all levels of professional nursing students, increasing the pipeline of nurses who serve in CSFs. Qualified applicants who have the greatest financial need<sup>5</sup> receive a funding preference. Tuition and fees are paid directly to the schools while stipends are paid monthly to the students to assist with the cost of books, clinical supplies/ instruments, and uniforms. Stipends were \$1,467.27 per month in 2019. Each participant was eligible to receive \$17,607.24 in yearly stipend support.

The Nurse Corps LRP and SP work together to address the distribution of nurses across the United States through the placement of nurses in CSFs. Many factors affect the supply and demand of the nurse workforce including population growth, aging of the population and the nursing workforce, overall economic conditions, demand for health services broadly and within specific health care settings, and health care reimbursement.<sup>6</sup> A 2017 study projected less growth in the RN supply relative to demand in seven states that could result in regional shortages by 2030.<sup>7</sup> Employers in some parts of the country report difficulty in recruiting and retaining an adequate number of RNs because of an aging RN workforce and a lack of younger RNs to fill the positions.<sup>8</sup> The differences in the age structure of the nursing workforce suggest that action to facilitate workforce development and projections for supply and demand of RNs differ by geographic region.<sup>9</sup>

## III. Overview

HRSA establishes and publishes Nurse Corps program priorities annually in the application and program guidance for each program. In fiscal year (FY) 2019, 50 percent of the Nurse Corps LRP and SP funding was set aside to support NPs. To increase the number of NPs participating in the programs, the Nurse Corps LRP and SP actively recruited licensed NPs and individuals interested in pursuing training as an NP through outreach efforts to colleges, universities, and associations.

For the Nurse Corps LRP, funding preference is given to applicants with the greatest financial need and who are working in Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSA) with scores of 14 or above.<sup>10</sup> For the Nurse Corps Faculty LRP, a funding preference is given to applicants teaching at schools where at least 50 percent of the student body are from a disadvantaged background.

For the Nurse Corps SP, funding preference is given to applicants with the greatest financial need based on the applicant's Expected Family Contribution (EFC). For FY 2019, this

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Financial need is determined by the applicants' expected family contribution (EFC) which is provided on the Official Student Aid Report generated through the Free Application for Federal Student Aid.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, HRSA, National Center for Health Workforce Analysis. (2017). Supply *and Demand Projections of the Nursing Workforce: 2014-2030*. Rockville, Maryland. <sup>7</sup> *Ibid*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Haddad LM, Annamaraju P, Toney-Butler TJ. Nursing Shortage. [Updated 2020 Jul 25]. In: StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2020 Jan-. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK493175/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, HRSA, National Center for Health Workforce Analysis. (2017). Supply *and Demand Projections of the Nursing Workforce: 2014-2030.* Rockville, Maryland.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> A debt-to-salary ratio of 100 percent or greater of the total qualifying educational loan balance divided by base annual salary.

preference included an EFC between \$0 and \$5,576. Among qualified applicants with the greatest financial need, awards will be made based on consideration of:

- Enrollment or acceptance in an accredited diploma or undergraduate nursing program or an accredited graduate-level NP program, including psychiatric-mental health specialization and full-time or part-time registration for consecutive terms.
- Enrollment or acceptance in an accredited Doctor of Nursing Practice program, a program for certified nurse midwives, certified registered nurse anesthetists (CRNA), clinical nurse specialists, or psychology specialist, and full-time registration for consecutive terms.

This report summarizes the activities of the Nurse Corps LRP and SP for FY 2019, and provides information on:

- Number of enrollees, scholarships, loan repayments, and grant recipients;
- Number of graduates;
- Amount of scholarship and loan repayments made;
- Educational institution attended;
- Number and placement location of Nurse Corps LRP and SP recipients at CSFs;
- Default rate and actions required;
- Amount of outstanding default funds for both the Nurse Corps LRP and SP;
- Reason for default to the extent that it can be determined;
- Demographics of the individuals taking part in the Nurse Corps LRP and SP;
- Justification for the allocation of funds between Nurse Corps LRP and SP; and
- Evaluation of the costs and benefits of the programs.

### **IV.** Report Requirements

# Requirement #1: The Number of Enrollees, Scholarships, Loan Repayments, and Grant Recipients

In addition to awards made with annual appropriations, Nurse Corps made new and continuation Nurse Corps LRP and SP awards with funds recovered from awardees who breached their contracts. Section 846(g)(4) of the PHS Act authorizes X-year funds, the amounts recovered from participants who breach their contracts, to be available and remain available until expended. (Default rates are discussed on page 10.) The programs use the recovered funds to make new awards, continuations, and modifications to the existing contracts. If a Nurse Corps SP participant agrees to a contract for less than the full duration of the training program (e.g., a scholarship covering only the first 2 years of a 4-year bachelor degree program), the participant may request a continuation of the contract in return for a commitment for additional years of support. Nurse Corps LRP participants are eligible for an additional 25 percent of their original verified qualifying outstanding student loan debt in exchange for an additional year of service. Participants requesting continuations must be in good standing with the terms of the initial contract. The programs fund eligible continuations before new awards are made. In FY 2019, the Nurse Corps LRP added \$502,007.79 to its X-year account and Nurse Corps SP added

\$734,230.38. These X-year funds provided 16 awards for Nurse Corps LRP and SP consisting of seven new SP awards and nine LRP new awards (Tables 1 and 2).

HRSA made 853 Nurse Corps LRP awards, including 552 new awards, 292 continuation from annual appropriations, and 9 new X-year funds awards (Table 1). Of the 853 awards, 292 (34.23 percent) were to RNs, 362 (42.44 percent) to NPs, 42 (4.92 percent) to CRNAs, 15 (1.76 percent) to certified nurse midwives, 0 (0 percent) to a clinical nurse specialist, and 142 (16.65 percent) to nurse faculty.<sup>11</sup>

Nurse Corps LRP									
		New	Continuations	Total					
2019	Applications	4,572	322	4,894					
	Total Awards	561	292	853					
	Base Funds Awards	552	292	844					
	X-Year Funds Awards	9	0	9					

 Table 1: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Awards (FY 2019)

HRSA made a total of 226 Nurse Corps SP awards, including 220 new and 6 continuation awards from annual appropriations. Additionally, HRSA made seven new Nurse Corps SP awards with X-year funds (Table 2). Of those 226 awards, 11 (4.87 percent) were awarded to associate's degree students, 153 (67.70 percent) to bachelor's degree students, and 62 (27.43 percent) to master's degree students.

	Nurse Corps Scholarship Program									
		New	Continuations	Total						
2019	Applications	2,164	6	2,170						
	Total Awards	220	6	226						
	Base Funds Awards	213	6	219						
	X-Year Funds Awards	7	0	7						

\*Nurse Corps made five modifications to base awards with X-year funds.

#### Requirement #2: The Number of Graduates

Nurse Corps SP participants may enroll in diploma programs, including accredited associate, bachelor, or master's degree programs. Participants may choose 1 to 4 years of scholarship support, consisting of payment of tuition and fees, other reasonable costs, and a monthly stipend. The minimum service requirement is 2 years of full-time service, with a maximum of 4 years of full-time service in a CSF, depending on the years of academic support received. Nurse Corps SP participants may fulfill their service obligation part time by extending the years of service so

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Percentages may not add up to 100 due to rounding.

that the aggregate amount of service performed is the full-time equivalent. Nurse Corps SP graduates have up to 9 months from the date of graduation to obtain a nursing license, accept an offer of employment from a program-approved facility, and begin full-time or part-time clinical services at a CSF. There were 217 active Nurse Corps SP participants who graduated in FY 2018.<sup>12</sup> Of those Nurse Corps SP participants, 200 were serving in a CSF, 2 were pursuing further training in nursing residency programs, and 15 were waiting for their placement at a CSF. In FY 2019, there were 197 Nurse Corps SP graduates from accredited school programs (Appendix A). As of September 30, 2019, 65 were serving in a CSF, 4 were pursuing further training in nursing residency programs and 128 were actively seeking employment.

# Requirement #3: The Amount of Scholarship Payments and Loan Repayments Made

For amounts paid for Nurse Corps LRP and SP new awards and continuations, funded from annual appropriations (base funds) and X-year funds, see Table 3.

## Table 3: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program and Scholarship Program Award Amounts(FY 2019)

		Nurse Corps LRP Awards	Nurse Corps SP Awards	Total
2019	<b>Base Funds</b>	\$52,081,032.26	\$23,561,203.54	\$75,642,235.80
	X-Year Funds	\$502,007.79	\$734,230.38	\$1,236,238.17
	Total Amount Awarded	\$52,583,040.05	\$24,295,433.92	\$76,878,473.97

#### Requirement #4: The Educational Institutions Attended by Recipients<sup>13</sup>

Nurse Corps SP participants attended 218 schools in 40 states, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. Appendix B illustrates the distribution of FY 2019 new awards by state and educational institution at 137 schools in 36 states, the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico.

#### Requirement #5: The Number and Placement Location of the Scholarship and Loan Repayment Recipients at Healthcare Facilities with a Critical Shortage of Nurses

Non-nurse faculty Nurse Corps LRP and SP participants are required to serve at a CSF. In 2019, private entities were not eligible for placement of Nurse Corps LRP participants, unless the entities are non-profit. Nurse Corps SP participants were permitted to serve at private, for-profit entities. The CSF definition requires facilities to be in, designated as, or serving a primary care

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> In FY 2018, a total of 227 Nurse Corps SP participants graduated from accredited school program. As of September 30, 2019, one participant was deceased and nine participants defaulted.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Nurse Corps LRP participants have completed their nursing education and are in service at CSFs or accredited schools of nursing; therefore, their educational institution is not reported.

or mental health HPSA. The following types of facilities are eligible CSFs for placement of Nurse Corps LRP and SP participants:

- Critical Access Hospital,
- Disproportionate Share Hospital,
- Public hospital,
- Federally Qualified Health Center,
- Indian Health Service Health Center,
- Native Hawaiian Health Center,
- Rural Health Clinic,
- Skilled Nursing Facility,
- State or local Public Health or Human Services Department,
- Free and charitable clinic,
- Ambulatory surgical center,
- Home health agency,
- Hospice program,
- Non-Disproportionate Share Hospital, and
- Nursing home.

In FY 2019, 501 Nurse Corps LRP participants served in 409 CSFs in 45 states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico (Appendix C); and 60 newly-awarded participants served as nurse faculty in 58 schools of nursing in 36 states (Appendix D).

#### Requirement #6: Default Rate and Actions Required

The Nurse Corps LRP and SP default rates<sup>14</sup> are expressed as the percentage of participants in a cohort (all participants with a new or continuation contract awarded in a FY) who default (number of participants who have defaulted divided by the total number of individuals in the cohort). Individuals often participate for multiple years; however, default rates are calculated in the FY in which an individual received the initial award. Therefore, for any given cohort, the default rate for a FY may change over time. When participants are out of compliance with their service obligation, they are referred to HRSA's Division of Participant Support and Compliance for compliance assistance. If the participant does not come into compliance and defaults, the Division of Participant Support and Compliance refers the participant to the Program Support Center for debt collection.

The maximum years a participant in full-time service may be in the Nurse Corps SP is 8 years— 4 years in school and 4 years of obligated service. The maximum number of years that a participant in full-time service may be in the Nurse Corps LRP is 3 years—2 years of service under an initial contract and one additional year of service under a continuation. Participants with periods of approved suspension of service may require an additional 1 to 2 years of monitoring. Participants wishing to serve part-time must obtain prior approval from Nurse Corps and must extend the service obligation to equal the full-time commitment. Thus, default rates are reported over 10 years for the Nurse Corps SP and 5 years for the Nurse Corps LRP to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> The default rate is determined by the year the scholarship or loan was awarded. For example, if the award occurred in 2008 and default occurred in 2014, then the default would be recorded in 2008.

provide an accurate picture of default rates. Historically, few to no defaults occur within the first year of the service obligation.

Participants who breach their contracts are placed in default and are liable to repay the Nurse Corps LRP or SP funds they received, plus interest, from the date of the default which is the date the participant breached the Nurse Corps contract service obligation or, for scholars, the date they left their educational program as described in section 846(g)(1)(A). The total amount owed, including interest, must be paid within 3 years of the date of default. The interest rate is the maximum legal prevailing rate for the applicable quarter determined and fixed by the Secretary of the Treasury after taking into consideration private consumer rates of interest. Nurse Corps LRP and SP work with participants placed in default by helping them to satisfy their debts through service when possible. In FY 2019, eight defaulted participants returned to service—one Nurse Corps LRP participant and seven Nurse Corps SP participants.

As of September 30, 2019, there were 204 defaults in the Nurse Corps SP from FY 2010 to FY 2019.

	Nurse Corps SP Default Rates Based on Award Year												
Fiscal Year	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	Total		
Total Defaulters	53	36	32	30	19	26	6	2	0	0	204		
Total Awardees	476	412	264	260	242	269	242	212	219	226	2,822		
Default Rate	11.1%	8.7%	12.1%	11.5%	7.9%	9.7%	2.5%	0.9%	0%	0%	7.2%		

 Table 4: Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Default Rates (FY 2010-FY 2019)

As of September 30, 2019, there were 107 defaults in the Nurse Corps LRP from FY 2015 to FY 2019.

 Table 5: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Default Rates (FY 2015-FY 2019)

Nurse Corps LRP Default Rates Based on Award Year												
Fiscal Year         2015         2016         2017         2018         2019         Total												
Total Defaulters	39	30	21	17	0	107						
Total Awardees	909	883	841	823	853	4,309						
Default Rate	4.3%	3.4%	2.5%	2.1%	0.0%	2.5%						

#### Requirement #7: Amount of Outstanding Default Funds of Both the Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs

Section 846(g)(4) of the PHS Act authorizes amounts recovered (X-year funds) from participants who breach their Nurse Corps LRP or SP contract to be made available for the respective program until expended. X-funds are used for new awards, continuations, and modifications to existing contracts. In FY 2019, the Nurse Corps LRP added \$502,007.79 to its X-year account providing nine new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account providing seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account provide seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account provide seven new awards, and closed the FY with a net X-year account provide seven new awards, a

As of September 30, 2019, the total outstanding default debt was \$3,223,236.30 for the Nurse Corps LRP and \$14,063,538.10 for the Nurse Corps SP.

#### Requirement #8: The Reasons for the Default

The most common reasons for default in the Nurse Corps SP are that participants fail to complete their service obligation, withdraw from school, or receive an academic dismissal.

Reasons for Default	FY 2010	FY 2011	FY 2012	FY 2013	FY 2014	FY 2015	FY 2016	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	Total
Failure to Verify Employment	12	6	4	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	24
Academic Dismissal	11	7	2	5	2	8	1	0	0	0	36
Withdrawal from School	13	10	2	4	5	2	1	1	0	0	38
Service Default*	16	13	22	18	10	12	2	1	0	0	94
Inappropriate Curriculum**	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	2
Voluntary Default***	0	0	2	1	2	3	2	0	0	0	10
Total	53	36	32	30	19	26	6	2	0	0	204

Table 6: Nurse Corps Scholarship Program - Reasons for the Default

\* Includes failure to work full time, failure to work at an approved site, resignation from a site, or failure to meet program requirements.

\*\* Includes curriculum unrelated to a nursing degree or an unapproved nursing degree (e.g., licensed practical nurse) \*\*\* Includes participants who contact the Nurse Corps SP and request default.

\*\*\*\* In FY 2019, 16 participants who were previously in default were granted an opportunity to return to service. Of the 16 participants, 3 participants were from the Nurse Corps LRP and 13 participants were from the Nurse Corps SP.

The most common reason for default in the Nurse Corps LRP is a failure to complete the service obligation subsequent to a participant's resignation from an approved site.

Reasons for Default	FY 2015	FY 2016	FY 2017	FY 2018	FY 2019	Total
Resigned/Left Site	26	14	12	12	0	64
Voluntary Default <sup>*</sup>	1	1	3	4	0	9
Not Working Full Time	3	4	4	1	0	12
Failure to Verify Employment	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other <sup>**</sup>	9	11	2	0	0	22
Total	39	30	21	17	0	107

Table 7: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program - Reasons for the Default(FY 2015-FY 2019)

\*Includes participants who contact the Nurse Corps LRP and request default.

\*\*Includes participants who were not working at an approved site, whose employment failed to meet the minimum program requirements, whose licenses were revoked, or who were terminated for cause.

# Requirement #9: The Demographics of the Individuals Participating in the Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs

Nurse Corps LRP and SP participants self-report demographic data. Of the participants who reported on sex, race, and ethnicity, the majority were female and White, with Black or African-American the largest minority group (Table 8). HRSA requests Hispanic/Latino and Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino ethnicity data in the electronic application separately from gender and race data. Applicants may choose to report on any of these demographic areas in whole or in part. As a result, Hispanic/Latino and Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino data may be over-reported as this information is the only metric for capturing ethnicity.

Table 8: Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program and Scholarship Program Participants'	
Demographic Characteristics <sup>15</sup>	

Nurse Corps LRP and SP Participants' Demographic Characteristics						
FY 2019 Demographics		se Corps LRP	Corps Nurse Corps Total		otal	
Total Awards		853		226	1	,079
Sex	#	%	#	%	#	%
Female	744	87.22%	190	84.07%	934	86.56%
Male	102	11.96%	35	15.49%	137	12.70%
Undisclosed	7	0.82%	1	0.44%	8	0.74%
Race	#	%	#	%	#	%
White	634	74.33%	124	54.87%	758	70.25%
Black/African-American	138	16.18%	80	35.40%	218	20.20%
Asian	36	4.22%	16	7.08%	52	4.82%
American Indian/Alaskan Native	17	1.99%	7	3.10%	24	2.22%
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander	4	0.47%	0	0.00%	4	0.37%
Two or More Races	33	3.87%	13	5.75%	46	4.26%
Undisclosed	36	4.22%	14	6.19%	50	4.63%
Ethnicity	#	%	#	%	#	%
Hispanic/Latino	83	9.73%	26	11.50%	109	10.10%
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	724	84.88%	187	82.74%	911	84.43%
Undisclosed	46	5.39%	13	5.75%	59	5.47%

#### Requirement #10: Justification for the Allocation of Funds between the Loan Repayment and Scholarship Programs

Historically, total Nurse Corps funds have been allocated at 67-75 percent for the LRP and 25-33 percent for the SP. For FY 2019, \$86.7 million was appropriated for the Nurse Corps LRP and SP. Of the \$86.7 million, HRSA allocated \$76.9 million for the Nurse Corps LRP and SP, with the remaining \$9.9 million directly supporting the Nurse Corps programs in the form of staffing and acquisition contracts including the electronic system used to process program applications and monitor awarded participants, as well as tax withholding and reporting and other administrative obligations. Of the \$76.9 million, HRSA allocated over 68 percent (\$52.6 million) to the LRP and nearly 32 percent (\$24.3 million) to the SP. The combination of these programs allows flexibility in meeting the future needs through the Nurse Corps SP pipeline of nurses and the immediate needs through the Nurse Corps LRP, which places nurses in the field immediately.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> Applicants may choose to report on any of these demographic areas in whole or in part, which may contribute to higher reporting in certain categories than others, the percentages may not add up to 100 due to rounding.

# Requirement #11: An Evaluation of the Overall Costs and Benefits of the Programs

Analysis of Costs per Years of Service

#### 1. FY 2019 Nurse Corps LRP Awards

In FY 2019, HRSA made 561 new awards, an increase of 3 percent compared to the 544 new awards in FY 2018. The average new award amount for Nurse Corps LRP participants was \$77,771.16 for non-faculty and \$71,231.58 for nurse faculty. This is a 5 percent decrease in the average new award amount for non-faculty participants. This is an 11 percent decrease in the average new award amount for nurse faculty participants from FY 2018 to 2019.

#### Nurse Corps LRP Continuations

In FY 2019, 51 percent of the participants initially awarded in FY 2017 requested a continuation award. The Nurse Corps LRP awarded 292 continuations in FY 2019. Nurse faculty received 28 percent (82 awards) of the continuation awards.

#### 2. FY 2019 Nurse Corps SP Awards

In FY 2019, Nurse Corps SP made 220 new awards and 6 continuation awards. The average new award was \$106,034.84—a 5 percent increase in the number of new awards and a 9 percent decrease in the average new award amount from FY 2018 to FY 2019.

#### 3. Average Amount Funded per Year of Service Obligated

Nurse Corps LRP new awards are based on 2 years of obligated service and capped at 60 percent of the applicant's total eligible loan amounts. The average new LRP award amount per year of obligated service was \$38,885.58 for nurses serving in CSFs and \$35,615.79 for nurses serving in accredited schools of nursing—a 5 percent decrease and an 11 percent increase respectively, from FY 2018 to FY 2019.<sup>16</sup>

Nurse Corps SP awards are based on 1 year of service for each year of funding with a minimum of 2 years of service. The average new SP award amount per year of obligated service was \$50,837.28—a 3 percent decrease from FY 2018 to FY 2019.

## V. Conclusion

The Nurse Corps LRP and SP continue to work towards increasing the number of nurses working in CSFs across the United States. Through the efforts and accomplishments highlighted

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> This data does not include the amount for continuation contracts which would extend the amount paid up to 85 percent of their debt and extend their years of obligated service to 3 years.

in this report, dedicated RNs and APRNs can care for underserved populations in CSFs and provide quality education in schools of nursing with students from disadvantaged backgrounds.

## Appendix A – Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Graduates by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)

	Nurse Corps SP Gr	aduates by State and Critical Shortage Facility (	FY 2019)
State	Total Participants by State	Critical Shortage Facility	Total Participants by CSF
AL	1	University of Alabama at Birmingham Hospital	1
AZ	1	Winslow Indian Health Care Center - Admin- istration and Winslow Medical Office Building	1
CA	2	Doctors Medical Center	1
		Victor Valley Global Medical Center	1
СО	1	Denver Health Medical Center	1
DC	2	Children's National Medical Center	1
		Medstar Washington Hospital Center	1
FL	2	Lakeland Regional Health	1
		St. Petersburg General Hospital	1
GA	7	Children's Healthcare of Atlanta -Hughes Spal- ding Hospital	1
		Emory University Hospital	3
		Emory University Hospital Midtown	1
		Piedmont Walton Hospital	1
		Wellstar Atlanta Medical Center	1
ID	1	Family Medicine Residency of Idaho/Emerald Clinic	1
IN	1	Marion General Hospital	1
KY	1	HealthPoint Family Care	1
MA	2	Community Health Connections, Inc Greater Gardner Community Health Center	1
		Manet Community Health Center at Hull	1
MD	4	Johns Hopkins Hospital	1
		Medstar Good Samaritan Hospital	1
		University of Maryland Medical Center	2
ME	2	Penobscot Community Health Care- Brewer Medical Center	1
		York County Community Action Corporation- Nasson Health Care- Springvale	1
MI	1	Beaumont Hospital - Dearborn	1
MN	1	Bois Forte Band of Chippewa - Bois Forte Health Services Nett Lake Clinic	1
MO	2	Children's Mercy Hospitals	1
		Mercy Hospital Washington	1
MS	1	University Of Mississippi Medical Center	1
MT	2	Livingston HealthCare	1

State	Total Participants by State	raduates by State and Critical Shortage Facility (I Critical Shortage Facility	Total Participants by CSF
	by State	Shodair Children's Hospital	1
NC	10	Carolinas Medical Center - Main	2
		Caromont Regional Medical Center	1
		Duke University Health System - Duke Regional Hospital	1
		Duke University Hospital	2
		Moses Cone Health System: Wesley Long Hos- pital	1
		Roanoke Chowan Community Health Center Ahoskie	1
		Vidant Edgecombe Hospital	1
		Vidant Medical Center	1
NJ	1	Southern Jersey Family Medical Centers, Inc - Women's and Children's Health Pavillon	1
NM	1	Christus St. Vincent Hospital	1
NV	1	Summerlin Hospital	1
NY	4	HHC Harlem Hospital Center - Administrative Network Anchor & Nurse Corps	1
		HHC Jacobi - Hospital-based - Outpatient Gen- eral Medicine Adult Primary Care	1
		RGH - Genesee Mental Health Center	1
		SUNY Update Medical University	1
OH	2	PrimaryOne Health - Alum Creek Location	1
		Salem Regional Medical Center	1
OR	2	Lancaster Family Health Center at Lancaster - Yakima Valley Farm Workers Clinic	1
		One Community Health - Hood River	1
PA	2	Pathways to Housing	1
		Wayne Memorial Community Health Centers	1
SC	1	Prisma Health Baptist Hospital ER	1
TN	2	Tennova Health Clarksville	1
		University of Tennessee Medical Center	1
TX	1	Southwest General Hospital	1
UT	3	Mountain West Medical Center	1
		Utah State Hospital	1
		Wasatch Homeless Health Care, Inc - Main	1
WA	1	Providence Family Medicine-North Pines	1

## Appendix B – Nurse Corps Scholarship Program Participants by State and School (FY 2019)

	Nurse Corps SP Participants by State and School (FY 2019)							
State	Total Participants by State	School Name	Total Participants by School					
AL	8	Troy University	1					
		University of Alabama at Birmingham - School of Nursing	3					
		University of South Alabama - College of Nursing	4					
AZ	3	Arizona College- Mesa	1					
		Northern Arizona University - School of Nursing	1					
		Pima County Community College	1					
CA	18	Azusa Pacific University - School of Nursing	3					
		California State University, Los Angeles	1					
		California State University, San Bernardino	1					
		California State University, San Marcos	4					
		California State University, Stanislaus	1					
		Mount Saint Mary's University, Doheny Campus	1					
		Point Loma Nazarene University	1					
		Samuel Merritt University - School of Nursing	2					
		San Francisco State University - School of Nursing	1					
		University of California, San Francisco - School of Nursing	2					
		West Coast University, Orange County	1					
CO	7	Denver College of Nursing	1					
		Regis University - School of Nursing	4					
		University of Colorado Anschutz Medical Campus	1					
		University of Colorado Denver - College of Nursing	1					
СТ	12	Quinnipiac University	1					
		Southern Connecticut State University	2					
		Yale University - School of Nursing	9					
DC	1	Georgetown University - School of Nursing & Health Studies	1					
FL	17	Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University	1					
		Florida Atlantic University - Christine E. Lynn College of Nursing	2					
		International College of Health Sciences	1					
		Keiser University, Ft. Lauderdale	1					
		Nova Southeastern University, Fort Myers	3					
		Nova Southeastern University, Ft. Lauderdale	2					

Nurse Corps SP Participants by State and School (FY 2019)							
State	Total Participants by State	School Name	Total Participants by School				
		Rasmussen College, Fort Myers Campus - School of Nursing	1				
		Rasmussen College, Ocala Campus - School of Nurs- ing	1				
		St. Thomas University - School of Science	1				
		University of Florida - College of Nursing	1				
		University of Miami - School of Nursing and Health Sciences	1				
		University of South Florida - College of Nursing	1				
		West Coast University, Miami	1				
GA	13	Emory University - Nell Hodgson Woodruff School of Nursing	8				
		Georgia State University - Byrdine F. Lewis School of Nursing	1				
		Georgia State University -Perimeter College School of Nursing	1				
		Kennesaw State University - School of Nursing	1				
		Mercer University - Georgia Baptist College of Nurs- ing	2				
IA	2	Allen College	2				
IL	4	Chamberlain University, Chicago	1				
		Methodist College	1				
		Saint Xavier University - School of Nursing	2				
IN	8	Bethel College	1				
		Indiana University-Purdue University Columbus	1				
		Indiana Wesleyan University - School of Nursing	2				
		Purdue University - School of Nursing	1				
		Valparaiso University - College of Nursing	2				
		Western Governors University, Indiana	1				
KY	4	Bellarmine University - Lancing School of Nursing	1				
		Frontier Nursing University - School of Nursing	2				
		Midway University - School of Nursing	1				
LA	4	Delgado Community College	1				
		Louisiana State University - Health Sciences Center	3				
MA	5	Boston College - School of Nursing	1				
		MGH Institute of Health Professions - School of Nursing	1				
		Northeastern University - Bouve College of Health Sciences	1				
		Regis College	1				

	Nurse Corps SP Participants by State and School (FY 2019)							
State	Total Participants by State	School Name	Total Participants by School					
		University of Massachusetts Dartmouth - College of Nursing	1					
MD	1	Bowie State University	1					
ME	1	Husson University	1					
MI	1	Delta College	1					
MN	1	Crown College	1					
MO	2	Saint Luke's College of Health Sciences	1					
_		University of Missouri - Kansas City - School of Nursing	1					
MS	4	Jones County Junior College	1					
		University of Mississippi Medical Center - School of Nursing	2					
		William Carey University - School of Nursing	1					
MT	2	Montana State University	1					
		Montana State University, Northern - School of Nurs- ing	1					
NC	11	Chamberlain University, Charlotte	1					
		Duke University - School of Nursing	4					
		North Carolina A&T State University - School of Nursing	1					
		Northeastern University at Charlotte - School of Nursing	1					
		Queens University of Charlotte - School of Nursing	2					
		University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill - School of Nursing	2					
NJ	4	Caldwell University	1					
		Chamberlain College of Nursing, North Brunswick	1					
		Georgian Court University	2					
NV	2	Arizona College, Las Vegas	1					
		Roseman University of Health Sciences - College of Nursing	1					
NY	13	Adelphi University - School of Nursing	1					
		College of Mount Saint Vincent	2					
		Farmingdale State College, SUNY	1					
		Nazareth College of Rochester	1					
		New York University - Rory Meyers College of Nurs- ing	4					
		Stony Brook University, SUNY - School of Nursing	1					
		The Sage Colleges	1					
		University of Rochester - School of Nursing - NY	1					
		Utica College (ABSN - Florida)	1					

	Nurse Corps SP Participants by State and School (FY 2019)							
State	Total Participants by State	School Name	Total Participants by School					
OH	7	Baldwin Wallace University	1					
		Cleveland State University School of Nursing	1					
		Lourdes University	1					
		Ohio State University - College of Nursing	2					
		Xavier University - School of Nursing	1					
		Youngstown State University - Bitonte College of Health & Human Services	1					
OK	2	Oklahoma City University - Kramer School of Nurs- ing	2					
OR	7	Linfield College - School of Nursing	3					
		Oregon Health & Science University - School of Nursing	3					
		University of Portland - School of Nursing	1					
PA	17	Drexel University - College of Nursing and Health Professions	3					
		Holy Family University - School of Nursing and Al- lied Health Professions	1					
		Moravian College	1					
		Pennsylvania State University Altoona	1					
		Pennsylvania State University, Harrisburg	1					
		Thomas Jefferson University - School of Nursing	4					
		University of Pennsylvania - School of Nursing	5					
		Villanova University - College of Nursing	1					
PR	1	Inter American University of Puerto Rico, Metropoli- tan Campus	1					
SC	4	Anderson University	1					
		Clemson University - School of Nursing	1					
		Medical University of South Carolina - College of Nursing	1					
		South University, Columbia	1					
TN	18	Belmont University - School of Nursing	2					
		Union University, Hendersonville	2					
		Union University, Main Campus	1					
		University of Tennessee, Knoxville	1					
		Vanderbilt University - School of Nursing	12					
ΤХ	5	Texas Christian University - Harris College of Nurs- ing and Health Sciences	1					
		Texas Tech Health Sciences Center - El Paso, Gayle Greve Hunt School of Nursing	1					
		Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center - School of Nursing	1					

	Nurse Corps SP Participants by State and School (FY 2019)						
State	Total Participants by State	School Name	Total Participants by School				
		Texas Woman's University, Houston - College of Nursing	1				
		University of Texas at Arlington - School of Nursing	1				
UT	2	Roseman University of Health Sciences	1				
		Western Governors University	1				
VA	4	Shenandoah University - School of Nursing	1				
		Stratford University, Woodbridge	1				
		Virginia Commonwealth University - School of Nurs- ing	2				
WA	2	Seattle Pacific University	1				
		University of Washington - School of Nursing	1				
WI	2	Columbia College Of Nursing	1				
		Concordia University Wisconsin - School of Nursing	1				
WY	1	University of Wyoming - School of Nursing	1				

## Appendix C – Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)

		Nurse	Corps LRP Parti	icipants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
AK	3	\$277,679.73	Anchorage	Alaska Native Medical Center (Hospital)	1	\$76,118.67
			Homer	Homer Public Health Center	1	\$44,802.85
			Wasilla	Southcentral Foundation - Benteh Nuutah Valley Native Primary Care Center	1	\$156,758.21
AL	12	\$787,209.56	Birmingham	Cooper Green Mercy Health Services	1	\$33,759.26
				St. Vincent's Hospital - Birmingham	3	\$320,006.63
				The Childrens Hospital of Alabama	1	\$87,930.89
				University of Alabama at Birmingham Hospital	1	\$47,055.75
			Greensboro	Hale County Hospital Clinic	1	\$67,075.42
			Huntsville	Thrive Alabama	1	\$52,994.16
			Mobile	Providence Hospital	2	\$51,943.92
				University of South Alabama Children's & Wom- en's Hospital	1	\$47,836.00
			Uniontown	Rural Health Medical Program, Inc Uniontown Health Center	1	\$78,607.53
AR	5	\$516,501.38	Earle	East Arkansas Family Health Center - Earle	1	\$127,538.77
			Fort Smith	Mercy Hospital - Fort Smith	1	\$159,354.51
				River Valley Primary Care Services - Northside Clinic	1	\$61,855.26
			Marked Tree	Access Medical Clinic	1	\$68,325.81
			Pine Bluff	Jefferson Comprehensive Care System - Pine Bluff Clinic	1	\$99,427.03
AZ	8	\$640,048.73	Bisbee	CCHCI - Bisbee Clinic	1	\$69,844.40
			Casa Grande	Horizon Health and Wellness - Casa Grande Out- patient Services	1	\$78,285.60

	Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds			
			Kingman	KRMC - Joshua Tree Pediatrics	1	\$148,347.73			
				Southwest Behavioral & Health Services - King- man Recovery Unit	1	\$52,135.11			
			Peridot	San Carlos Apache Healthcare Corporation - Peri- dot (outpatient services)	1	\$78,382.55			
			Tucson	Arizona's Children Association - Tucson	1	\$41,408.00			
				El Rio Health - Northwest Health Center	1	\$58,545.02			
			Winslow	Winslow Indian Health Care Center - Administra- tion and Winslow Medical Office Building	1	\$113,100.32			
CA	36	\$3,556,717.68	Berkeley	LifeLong - Ashby Health Center	1	\$139,356.10			
			Ceres	GVHC - CERES	1	\$71,387.45			
			Colton	Unicare CHC - Colton	1	\$66,122.72			
			Concord	La Clinica de la Raza - Monument	1	\$107,212.76			
			El Cajon	Neighborhood Healthcare - El Cajon	1	\$120,271.75			
			El Centro	El Centro Regional Medical Center	1	\$80,669.68			
			Eureka	Humboldt County Mental Health Branch	1	\$52,829.45			
			Hayward	Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center - Mission Blvd	1	\$101,906.23			
			King City	Monterey County Behavioral Health - King City	1	\$149,487.74			
			Long Beach	APLA Health and Wellness - Long Beach	1	\$102,435.86			
				Community Medical Wellness Centers USA	1	\$100,063.47			
			Los Angeles	Benevolence Health Center	1	\$68,769.62			
				Benevolence Industries - Crenshaw Community Clinic	1	\$66,100.76			
				Martin Luther King Jr Community Hospital	2	\$285,773.94			
				St. John's Well Child - Magnolia Place	1	\$175,202.59			
			Madera	Valley Children's Hospital	2	\$147,525.50			
			Mammoth Lakes	Mammoth Hospital	1	\$50,809.08			

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partici	pants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20)	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
			Mariposa	Mariposa County Behavioral Health and Recovery Services	1	\$69,562.14
			Moreno Valley	Community Health Systems, IncMoreno Valley Family Health Center	1	\$85,653.44
			Niland	Clinicas de Salud del Pueblo- Niland Health Clinic	1	\$85,459.67
			Petaluma	Petaluma Health Center	3	\$304,502.45
			Sacramento	WellSpace Health - Arden Arcade Community Health Center	1	\$125,953.08
			San Bernardino	San Bernardino County - San Bernardino Health Center	2	\$130,499.58
				Social Action Community Health (SACHS) - S. G St	1	\$107,676.43
				Unicare CHC - San Bernardino	1	\$187,361.38
			San Leandro	Tiburcio Vasquez HC - Ashland Community Clinic	1	\$86,482.78
			San Rafael	Ritter Center	1	\$63,079.24
			Soledad	Monterey County Behavioral Health - Soledad	1	\$107,595.96
			Stockton	Community Medical Centers, Inc Waterloo	1	\$81,513.87
				San Joaquin County Public Health Services Cali- fornia Childrens' Services	1	\$71,188.31
			Victorville	Planned Parenthood: Victorville Health Center	1	\$164,264.65
CO	16	\$1,137,680.82	Aurora	Children's Hospital Colorado	3	\$207,103.24
				Tri-County Health Department - Aurora Office	1	\$52,499.10
				VA Eastern Colorado Health Care System - Rocky Mountain Regional VA Medical Center	1	\$88,469.57
			Boulder	Clinica Family Health - People's Clinic	1	\$27,615.42
			Canon City	Valley-Wide Health Systems - Canon City Clinic	1	\$105,744.90
			Colorado Springs	Peak Vista Community Health Center - Health Center at Academy Suite 3500	1	\$32,007.57
				UC Health Memorial Hospital Central	1	\$131,017.99

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partic	pants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
			Denver	Colorado Coalition for the Homeless - Housing First Broadway	1	\$36,810.89
				Colorado Coalition for the Homeless - Stout Street Health Center	1	\$60,167.36
				Denver Health Medical Center	2	\$114,527.76
			Fort Carson	Evans Army Community Hospital	1	\$43,634.59
			Grand Junction	Community Hospital	1	\$127,593.67
				Mind Springs Health - Grand Junction Outpatient Center	1	\$110,488.76
CT	15	\$1,082,203.76	Derby	Griffin Hospital - Behavioral Health Clinic	2	\$144,268.87
			Hartford	Hartford Hospital	1	\$80,703.91
				Planned Parenthood of Southern New England - Hartford	1	\$50,127.28
				The Village for Families & Children - Village South	1	\$14,652.24
			Meriden	Community Health Center, Inc CHC of Meriden & Mobile Dental	1	\$83,414.76
			New Haven	Fair Haven Community Health Center	1	\$120,010.50
				Yale New Haven Hospital	1	\$90,376.84
				Yale-New Haven Hospital - York Street Campus	2	\$193,181.70
			Stamford	Community Health Center, Inc CHC of Stamford at Franklin Street	1	\$102,611.03
			Torrington	Community Health and Wellness Center of Greater Torrington	1	\$50,313.67
			Waterbury	Staywell Health Care, Inc.	1	\$47,100.43
			Waterford	Visiting Nurses Association of Southeastern CT	1	\$27,332.55
			Willimantic	Generations Family Health Center, Inc.	1	\$78,109.98
DC	11	\$925,398.10	Washington	CNMC- Children's National Medical Center	3	\$289,577.58
				CNMC- Goldberg Adolescent Health Center	1	\$59,783.00

		Nurse	Corps LRP Parti	icipants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
				Mary's Center for Maternal & Child Care- Main- Ontario Rd.	1	\$98,457.77
				Medstar Washington Hospital Center	5	\$404,978.01
				Unity Health Care- Minnesota Avenue Health Cen- ter	1	\$72,601.74
FL	27	\$2,453,978.88	Eustis	LifeStream Behavioral Center, Inc.	1	\$203,659.83
			Gainesville	Malcolm Randall VA Medical Center	3	\$233,439.88
			Havana	Neighborhood Medical Center - C.V. Butler Build- ing	1	\$59,310.41
			Hollywood	Memorial Regional Hospital	1	\$129,825.53
			Jacksonville	Shands Jacksonville Family Practice	1	\$87,713.22
			Miami	Jackson Memorial Hospital	1	\$59,137.96
				Miami Beach Community Health Center North	1	\$88,339.74
				Nicklaus Children's Hospital	1	\$61,076.30
				University of Miami	1	\$120,370.57
				University of Miami Hospital	6	\$557,518.28
			Naples	Collier Health Services, Inc Friendship Health Center	1	\$62,288.66
			New Smyrna Beach	Florida Hospital New Smyrna	1	\$108,121.08
			Orlando	Orlando VA Medical Center- Lake Nona Campus	2	\$184,345.67
			Palatka	Putnam County Health Department	1	\$62,871.91
			Pensacola	Escambia Community Clinics, Inc Lanza Pediat- rics	1	\$61,548.46
				Sacred Heart Hospital	1	\$146,137.81
			Tallahassee	Neighborhood Medical Center - Orange Avenue Site	1	\$74,611.38
			Tampa	Mental Health Care Inc.	1	\$91,396.14
				Moffitt Cancer Center	1	\$62,266.05

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partici	pants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)				
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds			
GA	16	\$1,101,252.18	Albany	AACSB-Dougherty County Mental Health	1	\$26,618.83			
				Phoebe Putney Memorial Hospital	1	\$55,541.59			
						Athens	St. Mary's Health Care System	1	\$159,643.87
			Atlanta	Grady Memorial Hospital	4	\$275,030.91			
				Saint Joseph's Mercy Care Svc - Mercy Care Deca- tur Street - Administrative	1	\$49,240.83			
			Augusta	Georgia Regents University	1	\$61,652.45			
			Conyers	Oakhurst Medical Centers, IncOakhurst Medical Centers Rockdale	1	\$97,010.95			
			Franklin	Heard County Health Department	1	\$41,083.76			
			Griffin	Spalding County Health Department	1	\$78,379.24			
				Macon	First Choice Primary Care, Inc Main/Administra- tive Site	1	\$36,100.00		
				Sparta	Sparta Health & Rehabilitation	1	\$51,806.99		
			Statesboro	Ogeechee Area Hospice	1	\$48,773.85			
			Wrens	Community Health Care Systems – Wrens	1	\$120,368.91			
IA	8	\$493,118.82	Cresco	Regional Health Services of Howard County (CAH)	1	\$65,795.25			
			Des Moines	Primary Health Care, Inc Engebretsen Medical and Dental Clinic	1	\$59,437.66			
			Mt. Pleasant	Henry County Health Center (CAH)	1	\$47,514.99			
			Osceola	Clarke County Hospital (CAH)	1	\$37,518.39			
			Sac City	UnityPoint Health - Berryhill Center	1	\$45,289.22			
			Sioux City	Siouxland District Health Department	1	\$55,984.13			
				Siouxland Mental Health Center	1	\$39,334.56			
			West Burlington	Community Health Centers of Southeastern Iowa - West Burlington Clinic	1	\$142,244.62			
ID	9	\$614,797.89	Blackfoot	Bingham Memorial Hospital	2	\$290,654.15			

Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)							
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds	
			Cascade	Cascade Medical Center-CAH	1	\$36,566.98	
			Emmett	Valley Family Health Care - Emmett Medical Clinic	1	\$36,933.85	
			Gooding	North Canyon Medical Center	1	\$54,027.07	
			Kellogg	Shoshone Medical Center	1	\$37,421.51	
			Mountain Home	St. Luke's Elmore Hospital - CAH	1	\$35,976.63	
			Nampa	St. Luke's Nampa Medical Center	1	\$78,634.45	
			Pocatello	Southeastern Idaho Public Health – Bannock County	1	\$44,583.25	
IL	58	\$4,058,749.13	Bloomingdale	Access - Martin T. Russo Family Health Center	1	\$111,663.84	
			Bloomington	Chestnut Family Health Center-Bloomington	1	\$88,000.00	
			Bowen	Memorial Medical Clinic - Bowen	1	\$61,221.63	
			Chicago	Access - Auburn Gresham Family Health Center	1	\$49,251.17	
				Advocate Trinity Hospital	2	\$176,553.49	
				Ann & Robert H. Lurie Children's Hospital (For- merly Children's Memorial Hospital )	6	\$453,120.52	
				Ann and Robert H. Lurie Children's Hospital of Chicago (Formerly Children's Memorial Hospital )	6	\$475,037.01	
				Comer Children's Hospital, University of Chicago Medical Center	3	\$184,316.69	
				Erie Family Health Center - Humboldt Park	1	\$51,327.74	
				Esperanza Health Centers - California Ave	1	\$39,142.83	
				Howard Brown Health - Clark	1	\$32,463.58	
				Infant Welfare Society of Chicago	1	\$33,677.87	
				Northwestern Memorial Hospital	2	\$172,604.13	
				Northwestern Memorial Hospital - Prentice Wom- en's Hospital	6	\$296,146.29	
				PCC Austin Family Health Center	1	\$64,815.42	

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partie	cipants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
				Rush University Medical Center	2	\$155,307.30
				Rush University Medical Center - 1620 W Harri- son	2	\$155,054.76
				Rush University Medical Center - 600 S Paulina	1	\$80,029.59
				Saint Anthony Hospital	1	\$64,072.63
				The University of Chicago Medical Center	1	\$63,108.95
				University of Chicago Medicine & Biological Sci- ences	1	\$94,656.65
				University of Illinois Hospital & Health Sciences System	2	\$210,248.20
			Fairfield	Fairfield Memorial Hospital	1	\$153,562.08
			Granite City	Chestnut Health Systems - NURSE Corps Site Only	1	\$5,656.94
			Harvey	Ingalls Memorial Hospital	1	\$151,107.66
			Hazel Crest	Advocate South Suburban Hospital	1	\$61,395.03
			Lagrange	Pillars Community Health Medical Center	1	\$36,791.11
			Mcleansboro	Hamilton Memorial Rural Health Clinic	1	\$57,895.25
			Mount Vernon	St Mary's Good Samaritian	1	\$137,413.93
			Oak Park	PCC Community Wellness Center - Lake Street Health Center	2	\$73,696.54
			Pittsfield	Illini Community Hospital	1	\$26,285.79
			Quincy	Adams County Health Department	1	\$29,360.68
			Robinson	Crawford Memorial Hospital	1	\$140,112.50
				Crawford Memorial Hospital - Rural Health Clinic	1	\$46,600.39
			Romeoville	VNA Health Care - Romeoville	1	\$27,050.94
IN	8	\$434,882.64	French Lick	Southern Indiana Community Health - Valley Health	1	\$48,794.52
			Goshen	Maple City Health Care Center	1	\$41,477.76

		Nurse	Corps LRP Parti	cipants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	)19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
			Lafayette	IU Health Arnett	2	\$98,123.93
			Mishawaka	HealthLinc - Mishawaka	1	\$58,089.66
			Richmond	Reid Hospital and Health Care Services	1	\$79,395.97
			Rushville	Rush Memorial Hospital	1	\$40,621.30
			Trafalgar	Windrose Health Network, Inc - Trafalgar	1	\$68,379.50
KS	4	\$256,448.78	Caldwell	Sumner County Hospital	1	\$66,362.35
			Emporia	Flint Hills Community Health Center	1	\$82,782.42
			Garden City	Finney County Health Department Clinic	1	\$51,667.48
			Parsons	Labette Health - Labette Family Practice	1	\$55,636.53
KY	6	\$393,536.70	Burkesville	Cumberland Family Medical Center	1	\$32,266.95
			Glasgow	T. J. Samson Community Hospital	1	\$58,529.52
			Hopkinsville	Christian County Health Department	1	\$82,581.54
			Louisville	Park DuValle at Newburg	1	\$60,413.61
			Prestonsburg	MCCC - Prestonsburg Clinic	1	\$97,137.55
			Williamsburg	Baptist Express Care	1	\$62,607.53
LA	9	\$842,500.33	Baton Rouge	Our Lady of the Lake Regional Medical Center - Baton Rouge Campus	1	\$167,282.29
				Woman's Hospital	1	\$165,456.97
			Coushatta	CHRISTUS Coushatta Healthcare	1	\$44,485.72
			Greensburg	Southeast Community Health Systems (SECHS) - St. Helena College and Career Academy	1	\$78,018.91
			Loranger	RKM Primary Care – Loranger	1	\$78,970.96
			New Orleans	University Medical Center New Orleans	1	\$53,268.66
			Norco	Access Health Louisiana - Norco Clinic (STCCHC)	1	\$56,814.01
			Shreveport	Overton Brooks VA Medical Center	1	\$82,536.33
			Springfield	RKM Primary Care – Springfield	1	\$115,666.48

		Nurse	Corps LRP Parti	cipants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)									
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds								
MA	7	\$573,391.02	Boston	Boston Health Care for the Homeless Program - Jean Yawkey Place	1	\$124,731.04								
				East Boston Neighborhood Health Center - Gove Street	1	\$27,967.46								
			Brockton	Brockton Neighborhood Health Center	1	\$60,658.41								
			Dorchester	DotHouse Health	1	\$61,613.69								
			Fall River	Healthfirst Family Care Center - Stanley St. Treat- ment and Resources	1	\$81,455.23								
				Lawrence	Greater Lawrence Family Health Center, Inc GLFHC-North	1	\$45,319.85							
				Springfield	Caring Health Center, Inc Forest Park	1	\$171,645.34							
MD	19	\$1,571,386.12	Baltimore	Johns Hopkins Hospital	9	\$800,952.16								
				Mercy Medical Center - Baltimore	2	\$196,204.94								
							THC- Mondawmin Mall Health Center (aka: Helen Burgess Health Center)	1	\$47,940.55					
				University of Maryland Medical Center	5	\$403,659.83								
													University of Maryland Medical Center, Midtown Campus	1
			Cumberland	Western Maryland Health System - Outpatient Be- havioral Health	1	\$41,274.95								
ME	1	\$54,849.83	Skowhegan	Redington-Fairview General Hospital	1	\$54,849.83								
MI	17	\$1,133,695.32	Caro	Caro Community Hospital	2	\$80,464.37								
			Clare	MidMichigan Medical Offices-Clare	1	\$30,764.86								
			Detroit	Community Health and Social Services Center - Fort St.	1	\$52,175.80								
				Henry Ford Hospital - Detroit	1	\$75,241.54								
				John D. Dingell VAMC	1	\$60,199.17								
			Frankfort	Paul Oliver Memorial Hospital	1	\$60,559.99								
			Grand Rapids	Cherry Health - Heart of the City Health Center	1	\$40,200.17								

		Nurse	Corps LRP Particip	oants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
			Greenville	Cherry Health - Montcalm Area Health Center	1	\$32,361.53
			Kalamazoo	Family Health Center - Alcott Site	1	\$53,243.47
			Lake City	District Health Department #10-Missaukee	1	\$52,978.66
			Lansing	Ingham Community Health Centers-Forest Com- munity Health Center	1	\$59,278.12
			Muskegon	Muskegon Family Care	1	\$87,441.30
			Sault Sainte Marie	Chippewa County War Memorial Hospital	1	\$151,155.46
			Southfield	St John Providence Health - Hospital 16001 West Nine Mile Road	1	\$124,995.96
			St. Ignace	Mackinac Straits Health System - Rural Health Clinic St. Ignace	1	\$113,576.35
			Three Rivers	Three Rivers Health Hospital	1	\$59,058.57
MN	6	\$511,935.47	Cass Lake	Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe - HD4 Health Clinic	1	\$105,512.21
			Cloquet	Community Memorial Hospital	1	\$118,580.14
			Minneapolis	Native American Community Clinic	1	\$45,081.88
				NorthPoint - Health and Wellness Center	1	\$88,125.67
			Moorhead	Lakeland Mental Health Center - Moorhead	1	\$75,748.57
			Saint Paul	West Side Community Health Services - La Clinica	1	\$78,887.00
MO	27	\$2,002,074.39	Branson	CoxHealth Medical Center Branson	1	\$57,906.23
			Chillicothe	Saint Luke's Health - Hedrick Medical Center (CAH)	1	\$63,402.84
			Columbia	MU Health Care - University Hospital	1	\$187,447.93
			Hermitage	Ozarks Community Health Center - Hermitage	1	\$101,870.06
			Joplin	Freeman Health Systems - Orthopaedic and Sports Medicine Clinic	1	\$78,017.62
			Kansas City	Children's Mercy Hospitals	2	\$131,191.10
				Truman Medical Center - TMC Administration and Hospital Hill	1	\$112,309.09

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partic	ipants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
			Monett	Clark Community Mental Health Center - Monett 3rd Street Office	2	\$54,003.06
			Mt. Vernon	Lawrence County Health Department	1	\$37,270.37
			Rolla	Phelps Health Hospital	1	\$63,748.92
			Salem	Salem Memorial District Hospital - Family Medi- cine	1	\$57,020.05
			Springfield	CoxHealth Cox Medical Center South	3	\$190,142.56
				Mercy Hospital Springfield	2	\$175,303.71
			St. Louis	BJC HealthCare - Barnes-Jewish Hospital	1	\$82,228.24
				BJC HealthCare - St. Louis Children's Hospital	3	\$221,247.03
				BJC HeatlhCare	1	\$99,154.22
				Cardinal Glennon Children's Medical Center	1	\$76,121.90
				St. Louis University Hospital	1	\$66,779.55
				VA St. Louis Health Care System - John Cochran Division	1	\$70,491.59
			Waverly	Live Well Community Health Center - Waverly	1	\$76,418.32
MS	4	\$290,460.29	Gulfport	Gulfport Memorial Hospital	1	\$69,368.37
				Memorial Hospital of Gulfport	1	\$53,995.18
			Mendenhall	Family Health Care Clinic, IncMendenhall	1	\$122,328.77
			Meridian	East Mississippi State Hospital	1	\$44,767.97
MT	3	\$181,899.37	Eureka	Kalispell Regional Healthcare - Eureka Healthcare Primary Care	1	\$19,040.49
			Glasgow	Frances Mahon Deaconess Hospital	1	\$121,034.92
			Helena	St. Peter's Hospital	1	\$41,823.96
NC	11	\$811,223.18	Black Mountain	Julian F. Keith Alcohol and Drug Abuse Treatment Center	1	\$37,339.48
			Boone	Appalachian Regional Healthcare System - Wa- tauga Medical Center	1	\$77,299.37

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partici	pants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
			Burlington	Alamance Regional Medical Center	1	\$57,389.61
			Durham	Duke University Health System - Duke Regional Hospital	1	\$154,617.48
				Duke University Hospital	1	\$49,767.70
				Durham County Health Department	1	\$61,768.06
			Eden	James Austin Health Center	1	\$32,179.38
			Greenville	Pitt County Public Health Center	1	\$46,594.58
			Pembroke	Women's Health Center of the Carolinas at Pem- broke	1	\$130,971.73
			Roanoke Rapids	Rural Health Group, Inc Administration	1	\$90,105.63
			Salemburg	Tri County Community Health Council, Inc CommWell Health of Salemburg	1	\$73,190.16
ND	1	\$126,126.18	Rolla	Northland Health Partners Community Health Cen- ter - Rolla	1	\$126,126.18
NE	8	\$732,883.55	Alliance	Box Butte General Hospital (CAH)	1	\$109,516.94
			Columbus	Columbus Community Hospital	2	\$204,555.33
			North Platte	Great Plains Regional Medical Center	2	\$271,189.51
			Omaha	Charles Drew Health Center	2	\$127,255.90
				OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc Main Clinic and Administrative site.	1	\$20,365.87
NH	1	\$30,146.74	Lancaster	Weeks Medical Center	1	\$30,146.74
NM	3	\$254,066.70	Gallup	Gallup Indian Medical Center (IHS Hospital)	1	\$99,425.32
			Las Cruces	La Clinica De Familia - Las Cruces Women's Health Center	1	\$71,047.71
			Portales	RGH Rural Health Clinic	1	\$83,593.67
NV	2	\$285,366.41	Las Vegas	UMCSN Nellis Quick Care	1	\$179,466.54
			North Las Vegas	Nevada Health Centers - North Las Vegas Family Health Center	1	\$105,899.87

	Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds			
NY	45	\$3,678,959.74	Binghamton	OMH - Greater Binghamton Health Center - Com- munity Treatment and Recovery Center	1	\$74,071.17			
			Bronx	Care for the Homeless - Franklin Avenue Women's Shelter	1	\$84,522.47			
				HHC Jacobi - Hospital-based - Outpatient Ob-Gyn Womens Health Center	1	\$109,258.51			
				Jacobi Medical Center	1	\$106,989.83			
				Montefiore Medical Center - Moses	1	\$77,879.39			
				Montefiore Medical Group – AMBUL NETWK	1	\$142,407.38			
				Morris Heights Health Center - Satellite - In-Tech Academy (MS/HS 368)	1	\$62,941.66			
				Morris Heights Health Center - Satellite - Marie Curie Campus	1	\$114,909.49			
				Morris Heights Health Center - School Based Sat- ellite - Banana Kelly & Rucker High School	1	\$108,487.30			
				Morrisania Sexual Health Clinic	1	\$55,516.40			
				New York Foundling - Bronx Community Services	1	\$103,155.29			
				Urban Health Plan - Main Site - El Nuevo San Juan Health Center	1	\$106,543.79			
			Brooklyn	HHC Kings County - Hospital-based - Outpatient General Adult Primary Care	1	\$106,855.76			
				Housing Works - Downtown Brooklyn Health Center	1	\$37,665.68			
				Maimonides Medical Center	1	\$80,090.65			
			Buffalo	ECMC - Health Campus - Behavioral Health	1	\$138,958.53			
			Corning	Guthrie Family Medicine- Corning Steuben	1	\$77,563.55			
			Jamestown	The Chautauqua Center - Jamestown Office	1	\$23,488.15			
			Lowville	Lewis County General Hospital	1	\$76,530.65			
			New York	Callen-Lorde Community Health Center (Main Site)	1	\$44,813.08			

		Nurse	Corps LRP Partic	pants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 20	19)	
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds
				Mount Sinai Kravis Children's Hospital	1	\$93,139.43
				Mount Sinai Medical Center - Main Administrative & Nurse Corps	2	\$158,478.17
				NY Presbyterian - Columbia University Medical Center - Herbert Irving Pavilion	1	\$132,222.83
				NY Presbyterian - Columbia University Medical Center - Presbyterian Hospital Building	2	\$260,260.24
				NY Presbyterian - Morgan Stanley Children's Hos- pital	1	\$75,244.77
			Norwich	Chenango County Community Mental Hygiene Services	1	\$44,419.19
			Ogdensburg	New York State Office of Mental Health - St. Law- rence Psychiatric Center - Admin and Nurse Corps	1	\$72,761.28
			Olean	Southern Tier CHC - Universal Primary Care Olean	1	\$65,758.31
			Peekskill	Hudson River Healthcare (HRHCare) - Peekskill Main Site	1	\$14,441.68
			Plattsburgh	Champlain Valley Physicians Hospital Medical Center	1	\$142,290.35
			Rochester	Rochester General Hospital (RGH)	3	\$160,502.32
				RPCN (RGH) - Northeast Health Service (Pediatric Primary Care and Child Mental Health)	1	\$69,403.25
			Syracuse	Loretto Health and Rehabillitation Center	2	\$197,761.57
				Nascentia Health- VNA Homecare	1	\$80,764.63
				OMH - Hutchings Psychiatric Center - Nurse Corps Site	2	\$107,397.67
				St. Joseph's Hospital Administrative and Nurse Corps Site	3	\$194,054.42
				Upstate University Hospital - Nurse Corps and NHSC Administrative Anchor	1	\$77,410.90
OH	7	\$677,348.29	Cincinnati	City of Cincinnati-Academy of World Languages	1	\$42,032.59

Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State	Total Participants by State	Participants   Total Funds	rticipants Total Funds City Critical Shortage Facility (C		Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds	
				Crossroad Health Center	1	\$123,852.53		
			Cleveland	Care Alliance Health Center - St. Clair Clinic Downtown	1	\$159,098.73		
			Hamilton	Primary Health Solutions - Hamilton West	1	\$102,940.31		
			Lorain	Lorain County Health and Dentistry - Broadway Avenue	1	\$48,268.75		
			Middletown	Primary Health Solutions - Middletown Commu- nity Health Center	1	\$46,109.51		
			Springfield	Rocking Horse Center	1	\$155,045.87		
OK	2	\$132,446.01	Claremore	Claremore Service Unit - Claremore Indian Hospi- tal	1	\$46,916.88		
			Guthrie	Mercy Clinic Guthrie Division	1	\$85,529.13		
OR	14	\$991,782.08	Baker City	Saint Alphonsus Medical Group - Baker Clinic	1	\$42,285.78		
			Eugene	Community Health Centers of Lane CountyChar- nelton Community Clinic	1	\$61,182.21		
			Klamath Falls	Klamath Basin Behavioral Health-El Dorado (Clinic and Admin)	1	\$140,932.75		
			La Grande	Grande Ronde Hospital Regional Medical Clinic and Walk-in Clinic	1	\$44,585.92		
			Lakeview	Lake Health District - Critical Access Hospital	1	\$38,117.35		
			Medford	Asante Rogue Regional Medical Center	1	\$127,753.16		
			Newport	Samaritan Pacific Communities Hospital	1	\$77,256.37		
			Pacific City	Northwest Medical Foundation of Tillamook dba Adventist Health Bayshore Pacific City	1	\$87,910.22		
			Portland	Multnomah County Health DepartmentHIV Health Services Center	1	\$81,617.86		
				OHSU - Family Medicine at Richmond	1	\$47,359.97		
				Oregon Health & Science University Hospital	1	\$67,606.35		
			Prineville	Crook County Health Department	1	\$29,591.26		

Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State Total Participants by State		Total Funds by State	('ity ('ity ('Nk')		Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds		
				Mosaic Medical-Prineville Clinic (and Administra- tive Site)	1	\$50,539.55		
			Warrenton	CMH Primary Care Clinic	1	\$95,043.33		
PA	7	\$457,329.07	Coudersport	Charles Cole Memorial Hospital	2	\$131,107.45		
			Everett	UPMC Bedford Memorial Hospital	1	\$96,849.15		
			Philadelphia	Philadelphia FIGHT - John Bell Clinic	1	\$69,291.46		
				Philadelphia FIGHT – Pediatric Clinic and Adoles- cent Medicine YHEP Clinic	1	\$43,589.19		
			Pittsburgh	University of Pittsburgh Medical Center	1	\$34,475.84		
			Williamsport	UPMC Susquehanna Health-Divine Providence	1	\$82,015.98		
PR	1	\$19,671.53	Gurabo	NeoMed Center, Inc	1	\$19,671.53		
RI	3	\$249,225.35	Hope Valley	Wood River Health Services, Inc.	1	\$39,635.97		
			Providence	Providence Community Health Centers, Inc.	1	\$35,810.63		
			Woonsocket	Thundermist Health Center of Woonsocket - Medi- cal	1	\$173,778.75		
SC	6	\$689,214.88	Anderson	AnMed Health Medical Center	1	\$28,812.33		
			Columbia	Prisma Health Richland Hospital	1	\$206,900.40		
				WJB Dorn VA Hospital	1	\$89,375.34		
			Hartsville	CSC Hartsville Center	1	\$172,909.37		
			Rock Hill	Affinity Health Center	1	\$127,573.04		
				North Central Family Medical Center Women's Health and Pediatric & Adolescent Center	1	\$63,644.40		
SD	3	\$119,639.10	Deadwood	Regional Health - Lead Deadwood Regional Hospital (CAH)	1	\$62,113.47		
			Webster	Sanford Hospital Webster (CAH)	1	\$29,031.29		
			Yankton	Horizon Health Care, Inc Yankton Community Health Center and Dental Services	1	\$28,494.34		
TN	14	\$821,316.44	Alcoa	CHS Alcoa Good Samaritan Clinic	1	\$41,237.49		

Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State	Total Participants by StateTotal Funds by State		City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds		
			Carthage	UCPCP - Smith County Health Department	1	\$28,688.51		
			Clarksville	Centerstone - Clarksville	1	\$121,107.54		
			Columbia	Maury Regional PrimeCare Clinic	1	\$66,423.71		
			Lenoir City	CHS Loudon County	1	\$50,946.01		
			Maryville	Blount County Health Department	1	\$47,916.09		
			Memphis	Le Bonheur Children's Hospital - Main Hospital	1	\$79,438.28		
				Memphis VA Medical Center	1	\$104,688.85		
				Methodist South Hospital	1	\$76,088.96		
				Regional Medical Center at Memphis (The MED)	1	\$63,249.99		
			Newport	Rural Medical Services Inc Cosby Center	1	\$35,581.99		
				Rural Medical Services, Inc Newport Center	1	\$60,890.93		
			Springfield	Northcrest Medical Center	1	\$22,864.88		
			Union City	Pathways-Obion County Office	1	\$22,193.21		
TX	7	\$471,290.98	Alvin	Stephen F Austin Community Health Center-Main Admin Site	1	\$127,177.71		
			Fort Bliss	Embedded Behavioral Health Clinic	1	\$22,313.91		
			Fort Stockton	Cactus Health Services, Inc. Fort Stockton	1	\$90,765.10		
			Rusk	Rusk State Hospital	2	\$69,940.98		
			San Antonio	CommuniCare Health Centers - Dr. Frank Bryant Health Center	1	\$61,368.90		
			Wichita Falls	Community Health Center of Wichita Falls - North Central TX CHC - Main	1	\$99,724.38		
UT	1	\$150,012.21	Delta	Intermountain Healthcare- Delta Community Med- ical Center	1	\$150,012.21		
VA	3	\$205,108.61	Danville	Southern Virginia Mental Health Institute	1	\$33,955.61		
			Norfolk	HRCHC- Ocean View Medical and Dental Center	1	\$105,184.65		
				Sentara Norfolk General Hospital	1	\$65,968.35		

Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State	Total Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds		
WA	13	\$1,245,767.09	Cathlamet	Cowlitz Family Health Center - Wahkiakum Medi- cal Clinic	1	\$140,693.81		
			Inchelium	Lake Roosevelt Community Health Center - Inche- lium Community Health Center	1	\$87,133.20		
			Kent	HealthPoint Kent Urgent Care	1	\$186,410.62		
			Mount Vernon	Sea Mar CHC - Mount Vernon Medical & Dental	1	\$60,423.30		
			Richland	Kadlec Regional Medical Center	1	\$162,861.75		
			Seattle	Country Doctor CHC-After Hours Clinic	1	\$63,947.33		
			Spokane Valley	Multicare Valley Hospital	1	\$35,417.93		
			Tukwila	HealthPoint Tukwila Medical and Dental	1	\$128,694.93		
			Vancouver	Sea Mar CHC - Vancouver Behavioral Health (20th Avenue)	1	\$32,264.64		
			Yakima	Lincoln Avenue Medical-Dental Clinic - Yakima Valley Farm Workers Clinic	1	\$82,733.71		
				Virginia Mason Memorial Hospital	2	\$146,535.33		
				Yakima Medical & Dental - Yakima Valley Farm Workers Clinic	1	\$118,650.54		
WI	5	\$325,764.92	Hayward	Hayward Area Memorial Hospital	1	\$34,108.04		
				Kenosha	Kenosha County Health Department	1	\$47,008.60	
			Milwaukee	Aurora Health - Milwaukee Sinai Medical Center	1	\$73,112.61		
				Progressive CHC - 12th Street Urgent Care	2	\$171,535.67		
WV	9	\$596,265.81	Bluefield	The Behavioral Health Pavilion of the Virginia's	1	\$84,922.29		
			Elkins	Randolph Elkins Health Department	1	\$52,238.45		
			Huntington	Cabell Huntington Hospital	1	\$43,569.83		
				Lewisburg	Robert C Byrd Clinic	1	\$46,441.50	
			Martinsburg	SVMS: Shenandoah Community Health Center - Women's Health	2	\$193,352.10		
			Ripley	MORAD/HUGHES Health Center	1	\$49,510.17		

	Nurse Corps LRP Participants by State and Critical Shortage Facility (FY 2019)								
State	Total Participants by State	pants   Total Funds   City		Critical Shortage Facility (CSF)	Number of Participants by CSF	Total Funds			
			Summersville	Summersville Memorial Hospital	1	\$35,780.28			
			Welch	Welch Emergency Clinic RHC	1	\$90,451.19			

## Appendix D – Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program Nurse Faculty: New Participants by State and School (FY 2019)

		Nurse Corps	LRP Nurse Facu	lty Participants by State and School (FY 2	019)	
State	Total New Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	School	Number of Participants by Educational Institution	Total Funds
AL	1	\$39,317.87	Birmingham	Lawson State Community College	1	\$39,317.87
AR	1	\$80,987.76	Russellville	Arkansas Tech University	1	\$80,987.76
AZ	1	\$38,370.34	Sierra Vista	Cochise College	1	\$38,370.34
CA	3	\$260,052.38	Loma Linda	Loma Linda University - School of Nursing	1	\$70,984.78
			Sacramento	California State University, Sacramento - School of Nursing	1	\$67,113.53
			Whittier	Rio Hondo College	1	\$121,954.07
СО	1	\$55,400.78	Denver	Regis University Loretto Heights School of Nursing	1	\$55,400.78
FL	4	\$317,819.61	Miami	Miami Dade College - Medical Campus	1	\$114,017.50
			Tampa	University of Tampa - School of Nursing	1	\$90,647.54
			West Palm Beach	Palm Beach Atlantic University	2	\$113,154.57
GA	2	\$90,128.24	Marietta	Chattahoochee Technical College	1	\$49,744.63
			Rome	Georgia Highlands College - School of Nursing	1	\$40,383.61
IA	2	\$174,225.72	Fort Dodge	Iowa Central Community College - Health Sciences Program	1	\$51,768.89
			Iowa City	The University of Iowa College of Nurs- ing	1	\$122,456.83
ID	1	\$102,255.01	Pocatello	Idaho State University - School of Nurs- ing	1	\$102,255.01
IL	1	\$113,615.10	Chicago	University of Illinois at Chicago, College of Nursing	1	\$113,615.10

		Nurse Corps	LRP Nurse Facu	lty Participants by State and School (FY 2	(019)	
State	Total New Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	School	Number of Participants by Educational Institution	Total Funds
IN	4	\$172,265.41	Anderson	Ivy Tech Community College	1	\$39,308.83
			Indianapolis	Ivy Tech Community College	1	\$43,881.15
			Muncie	Ivy Tech Community College	1	\$36,441.68
			Richmond	Indiana University East - School of Nursing	1	\$52,633.75
KS	1	\$97,979.15	Chanute	Neosho County Community College - Health Program	1	\$97,979.15
KY	1	\$28,699.27	Hopkinsville	Hopkinsville Community College	1	\$28,699.27
LA	1	\$124,063.18	New Orleans	Louisiana State University Health Sci- ences	1	\$124,063.18
MA	1	\$107,142.54	Milton	Curry College	1	\$107,142.54
MD	3	\$212,983.59	Baltimore City	University of Maryland School of Nurs- ing	1	\$68,758.64
			Towson	Towson University	1	\$75,216.99
			Westminister	Carroll Community College	1	\$69,007.96
ME	1	\$135,986.49	Fort Kent	University of Maine at Fort Kent	1	\$135,986.49
MI	2	\$132,609.09	Big Rapids	Ferris State University - School of Nurs- ing	1	\$83,721.56
			Muskegon	Muskegon Community College	1	\$48,887.53
МО	2	\$87,387.68	Cape Girardeau	SoutheastHEALTH - Southeast Hospital College of Nursing & Health Sciences	1	\$50,661.81
			Springfield	Southwest Baptist University - St. John's College Nursing and Health Sciences	1	\$36,725.87
MS	1	\$43,852.73	Moorhead	Mississippi Delta Community College	1	\$43,852.73
NC	2	\$94,345.97	Hamlet	Richmond Community College	1	\$33,631.37
			Wilmington	Cape Fear Community College	1	\$60,714.60
NE	1	\$51,065.69	Omaha	UNMC College of Nursing - Omaha Campus	1	\$51,065.69

Nurse Corps LRP Nurse Faculty Participants by State and School (FY 2019)								
State	Total New Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	School	Number of Participants by Educational Institution	Total Funds		
NM	1	\$52,970.26	Las Cruces	New Mexico State University - School of Nursing	1	\$52,970.26		
NV	1	\$77,489.91	Henderson	Roseman University College of Nursing - Nevada Campus	1	\$77,489.91		
NY	1	\$80,919.48	Brooklyn	Long Island University, Brooklyn - School of Nursing	1	\$80,919.48		
OH	1	\$71,256.98	Athens	Ohio University - School of Nursing	1	\$71,256.98		
OK	1	\$29,922.61	Miami	Northeastern Oklahoma A&M College	1	\$29,922.61		
OR	2	\$92,887.21	Newberg	George Fox University	1	\$41,667.99		
			Portland	Oregon Health & Science University - School of Nursing	1	\$51,219.22		
PA	3	\$232,751.35	Bethlehem	St. Luke's Hospital School of Nursing	1	\$74,312.73		
			Center Valley	Desales University	1	\$92,984.41		
			University Park	Pennsylvania State University - College of Nursing	1	\$65,454.21		
TN	3	\$296,867.32	Dyersburg	Dyersburg State Community College	1	\$94,206.45		
			Harrogate	Lincoln Memorial University	1	\$75,341.01		
			Nashville	Vanderbilt University - School of Nurs- ing	1	\$127,319.86		
TX	3	\$220,399.69	Baytown	Lee College	1	\$82,762.40		
			Gainesville	North Central Texas College	1	\$71,505.65		
			Lubbock	Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center - School of Nursing	1	\$66,131.64		
UT	2	\$177,207.83	Salt Lake City	Western Governors University	2	\$177,207.83		
VA	1	\$52,667.33	Weyers Cave	Blue Ridge Community College	1	\$52,667.33		
VT	1	\$113,918.67	Castleton	Castleton State College	1	\$113,918.67		
WA	1	\$48,543.91	Kirkland	Northwest University - The Mark and Huldah Buntain School of Nursing	1	\$48,543.91		

	Nurse Corps LRP Nurse Faculty Participants by State and School (FY 2019)									
State	Total New Participants by State	Total Funds by State	City	School	Number of Participants by Educational Institution	Total Funds				
WI	2	\$165,538.54	Kenosha	Gateway Technical College	1	\$101,820.97				
			Menomonee Falls	Herzing University, Menomonee Falls	1	\$63,717.57				